
AGENDA POSTED: May 8, 2026 at 5:30 pm 

Planning & Zoning Commission Meeting Agenda 
May 13, 2026, 6:00 pm 

Council Chambers, City Hall, 201 S. Franklin St. 

Online viewing location: 
https://www.youtube.com/user/KirksvilleCity 

Call Meeting to Order    

Roll Call 

Order of the Agenda:  
Staff Report of additions or changes 
Motion (and Second) to approve the order of the agenda 
Vote – Ayes / Nays / Abstain 

Minutes:     
Minutes of the regular meeting on April 08, 2026 
Motion (and Second) to approve minutes  
Chair asks for corrections 
Vote – Ayes / Nays / Abstain 

Old Business: 
None 

New Business:  

1. Public Hearing – An application to rezone the property at the northwestern corner
of East Illinois Street and Highway 63 from RP-5, Planned Mobile Home Park
District to C-3, Extensive Business District.

a. Chair Declares Public Hearing Open
b. Staff Report
c. Public Input

i. In Favor

https://www.youtube.com/user/KirksvilleCity


ii. Opposed
d. Chair Declares Public Hearing Closed

2. Rezone - A request to rezone the property at the northwestern corner of East 
Illinois Street and Highway 63 from RP-5, Planned Mobile Home Park District to
C-3, Extensive Business District.

a. Recommended Motion – To recommend City Council approve a request to 
rezone the property at the northwestern corner of East Illinois Street and 
Highway 63 from RP-5, Planned Mobile Home Park District to C-3, 
Extensive Business District.

b. Staff Report
c. Commission Discussion
d. Citizen Questions/Input
e. Vote - Roll Call

3. Variance Request – A request for a variance from Sec. 44-210. - District R-1, 
Single-Family Residential District (4) and Sec. 44-190. - Yard requirements 
generally (4)(a)., at 2806 Weatherbrooke Dr.

a. Recommended Motion – To recommend City Council approve a variance 
from Sec. 44-210. - District R-1, Single-Family Residential District (4) and 
Sec. 44-190. - Yard requirements generally (4)(a)., at 2806 Weatherbrooke 
Dr.

b. Staff Report
c. Commission Discussion
d. Citizen Questions/Input
e. Vote – Roll Call

4. Variance Request – A request for an extension of a Variance from Sec. 44-132.
– Detached buildings generally. at 901 W. Shepherd Ave.

a. Recommended Motion – To recommend City Council approve an extension 
of a Variance for eighteen months from Sec. 44-132. – Detached buildings 
generally. at 901 W. Shepherd Ave.

b. Staff Report
c. Commission Discussion
d. Citizen Questions/Input
e. Vote  - Roll Call



Staff Comments:  
 
 
Citizen Participation 
 (Time Limit of Five Minutes) Citizen participation is for suggestions and comments on items affecting the Planning & Zoning 

Commission and the City, but are not on the agenda.  Action by the Commission other than acknowledgment is not expected 
at the same meeting.  Citizens may address the Commission on topics which are part of the regular agenda when these 
items are discussed by the Commission.  Citizens must add their signature to the Citizen Participation Sign-In Sheet and 
announce their name before they begin speaking.  The Commission does like to follow up with citizens and request citizens 
willing to leave a form of contact. 

 
Adjournment 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Notice of Nondiscrimination: 
All persons within the City of Kirksville are free and equal and shall be entitled to the following equal use and enjoyment within the city 
at any place of public accommodation without discrimination or segregation on account of age, ancestry, color, disability, gender, 
gender identity, marital status, national origin, race, religion, sexual orientation or on any other basis that would be in violation of any 
applicable federal, state, or local law. 
 
Notice of Disability Accommodations: 
Any person with a disability desiring reasonable accommodation to attend this meeting may contact the City Clerk at 660.627.1225 to 
make such arrangements. 
 
 



PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION 

MINUTES OF April 8, 2026 

 

PRESENT: 

Dan Martin, Chair 

Jeremy Hopkins, Vice Chair 

Chuck Heckert 

Betty McLane-Iles 

William Robb 

 

ABSENT:  

Jason Chrisman 

 

CALL TO ORDER 

Chair Martin called the meeting of the Planning & Zoning Commission in the City Council 
Chambers to order at 6:01 p.m.  

 

ORDER OF THE AGENDA 

Chair Martin asked if there were any changes to the agenda.  Mrs. Knipe responded there were 
no changes.  Mr. Thompson made a motion to approve the agenda.  Mr. Bansal seconded the 
motion.  The agenda was approved with the following vote: Aye: Bansal, Heckert, Hopkins, 
McLane-Iles, Robb, Sexton, Thompson, Martin.  Nay: none. Abstain: none.  Absent: Chrisman.   

 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

Chair Martin asked for a motion to approve the minutes of March 11, 2026.  Mr. Thompson made 
a motion to approve the minutes as published.  Prof. Dr. McLane-Iles seconded the motion.  With 
no changes, the minutes were approved, as published, with the following vote: Aye: Bansal, 
Heckert, Hopkins, McLane-Iles, Robb, Sexton, Thompson, Martin.  Nay: none. Abstain: none.  
Absent: Chrisman.   

 

OLD BUSINESS 

None 

 

Patricia Sexton 

Bruce Thompson 

Kabir Bansal, Council Representative  

Sara Knipe, City Planner 

 



NEW BUSINESS 

1. Variance Request – A request for a variance from Sec. 10-185. – Driveways. (a), (b), (c), and 
(d) at 2810 Round Barn Way.  Mr. Hopkins made a motion to recommend City Council approve a 
variance from Sec. 10-185. – Driveways. (a), (b), (c), and (d) at 2810 Round Barn Way.  Mr. 
Thompson seconded the motion.   

 

Mrs. Knipe stated that the owner had requested a variance for the driveway, as 2,361 feet would 
otherwise have needed to be hard-surfaced. The owner had obtained bids for the project, and the 
lowest-cost option—asphalt—had been comparable to the cost of constructing the home. The 
owner had therefore requested a variance to allow for a gravel driveway. Mrs. Knipe explained 
that the home had been set far back on the property because the owner had children and wanted 
to keep them away from the road. She noted that the owner had planned to pave the first 12 feet 
to connect to the existing gravel road in the event it was paved in the future. She added that the 
road to the property had been gravel and that City staff had recommended approval of the 
variance. 

 

Mr. Thompson stated that the property had been a bean field located on the edge of the city limits. 
Given that access to the property had been via a gravel road, he saw no reason to deny the 
variance. He also noted that the applicant had no intention of subdividing the property. 

 

Mr. Robb expressed concern with the claim of financial hardship when purchasing a large piece 
of property, planning a large home, and including a long driveway. He stated that ordinances had 
not been contingent upon an individual’s ability to afford compliance and that projects should have 
been budgeted accordingly. Mr. Robb strongly recommended that the City Council review the 
ordinance requiring paved driveways due to the cost and lack of environmental benefit. Mrs. Knipe 
acknowledged that costs had increased and encouraged Mr. Robb to bring the issue to the City 
Council. She explained that a variance served as a reasonable accommodation for those who 
came forward with appropriate requests. Mr. Robb stated that while he appreciated the flexibility, 
the rule should have been removed if it no longer made sense. 

 

Chair Martin noted that not all variance requests had been approved and pointed out that the road 
to the property was gravel. He added that the nature of the request, specifically for a single-family 
home, aligned with the 2040 Comprehensive Plan’s goal of promoting environmentally friendly 
practices. 

 

Prof. Dr. McLane-Iles asked about the cost of the home. Mrs. Knipe stated that it would be a 
modest three-bedroom home.  Chair Martin added that it would include an in-law suite. Mrs. Knipe 
explained that the petitioner could either build the home or the driveway, as the costs would be 
comparable. She reiterated that, given the connection to a gravel road, the request was 
reasonable. 



 

Councilmember Bansal noted that last year, the City Council had asked city staff to review 
ordinances and variance history to identify common patterns. Mrs. Knipe responded that while 
staff had reviewed the code for commonalities, most variance requests had been based on 
differing circumstances. 

 

Mr. Robb suggested that financial hardship be explicitly included in the code if it was considered 
a valid basis for deviation. Chair Martin replied that variances had been intended to allow case-
by-case consideration. Prof. Dr. McLane-Iles asked whether realtors or builders had a 
responsibility to inform property owners of applicable requirements. Mrs. Knipe clarified that the 
family would be building a home. Mr. Robb stated that builders were aware of code requirements 
and reiterated that including financial hardship in the code would benefit citizens. Mrs. Knipe 
responded that was the purpose of the variance process. Mr. Robb shared that not all citizens 
were aware that variances could be requested.  

 

Mr. Hopkins noted that commission members were in a privileged position to be informed about 
such processes.  He shared that there seemed to be a gap in communication from professionals, 
such as electricians and realtors, when going through building projects. He acknowledged 
uncertainty about how to address the issue. Mrs. Knipe responded that she had made an effort 
to educate individuals through in-depth conversations. 

 

Ryan Huseman, 2804 Weatherstone Dr., Kirksville, Missouri – Mr. Huseman shared he was the 
engineer of record for the project. He explained that the project was in the budgeting and site 
design phase.  He noted that asphalt and concrete costs in Kirksville were significantly higher 
than in other regions. He added that the family had chosen the home’s location to minimize 
interstate noise and that the design had followed the natural ridge of the land to avoid costly 
regrading. 

 

Mr. Thompson asked how long the property had been owned. Mr. Huseman stated that it had 
been recently inherited. Mr. Thompson added that the owner’s father had recently passed away 
and that the land had previously been farmland. Mr. Huseman noted that the entrance to the 
Round Barn property was a gravel road maintained by the City.  He explained that a concrete 
entry would be added to ensure compliance if the city chooses to pave the road in the future. 
Chair Martin reiterated that the 2040 Comprehensive Plan had encouraged development within 
city limits. 

 

Mr. Huseman stated that stormwater considerations had been reviewed and that the dam would 
be raised to prevent any issues. Mrs. Knipe clarified that no variance had been requested 
regarding stormwater. 

 



With no further input, the motion was approved with the following vote: Aye: Bansal, Heckert, 
Hopkins, McLane-Iles, Sexton, Thompson, Martin. Nay: Robb. Abstain: None. Absent: Chrisman. 

 

2.  Variance Request – A request for a variance from Sec. 44-212 – District R-3, Multifamily 
Residential District and R-3-S, Multifamily Special Residential District. (2), (3), and (4) at 814 N. 
Florence St.  Mr. Hopkins made a motion to recommend that the City Council approve a variance 
from Sec. 44-212 – District R-3, Multifamily Residential District and R-3-S, Multifamily Special 
Residential District. (2), (3), and (4) at 814 N. Florence St.  Dr. Sexton seconded the motion.     

 

Mrs. Knipe stated that the property previously contained a blighted home that had been 
demolished. The owner intended to rebuild using the same footprint, with no expansion. She 
explained that variances were needed for front and side yard setbacks due to changes in the 
code. She added that the previous home could not be saved due to flooding. 

 

The Commission discussed the need to maintain the original footprint because the lot did not 
meet current setback requirements due to code changes. Mr. Robb noted a nearby tree and 
expressed hope it could be preserved. Mrs. Knipe stated she believed the tree was on the 
adjacent property. 

 

Prof. Dr. McLane-Iles asked whether the new home would match the previous style, and Mrs. 
Knipe indicated it would be a simple design. The Commission also discussed a neighboring 
duplex and its inability to expand. Mrs. Knipe explained that fire safety concerns would limit the 
expansion.  However, the duplex met current setback requirements. 

 

With no further input, the motion was approved with the following vote: Aye: Heckert, Hopkins, 
McLane-Iles, Robb, Sexton, Thompson, Bansal, Martin. Nay: None. Abstain: None. Absent: 
Chrisman. 

 

3. Variance Request – A request for a variance from Sec. 44-132. – Detached buildings generally 
at 1214 W. Burton St.  Dr. Sexton made a motion to recommend City Council approve a variance 
from Sec. 44-132. – Detached buildings generally. at 1214 W. Burton St.  Mr. Hopkins seconded 
the motion.     

 

Mrs. Knipe stated that the request was to allow a shipping container for storage beyond 30 days. 
She explained that city code did not permit such use unless associated with a demolition project 
exceeding 30 days.  She also said that there was no provision allowing the container to remain 
permanently. She stated that city staff recommended the request be denied. 

 



Mr. Robb noted that the property was on the edge of the city limits and relatively isolated. He 
argued that the container would provide an affordable storage option and could be considered a 
case of financial hardship, although the owner did not state that reason. He also referenced 
shipping containers at the Fire Training Center on the adjacent property. 

 

Mrs. Knipe clarified that the recommendation for denial was based on the proposed use within a 
residential zone. The zoning of the Fire Training Center was discussed, with Mrs. Knipe noting 
she did not believe the zoning shown was correct.  

 

Mr. Hopkins stated that if the zoning designation was accurate, it should be reviewed. He 
referenced earlier discussion regarding consistency in how rules were applied. Mr. Robb 
reiterated that it was pointed out the variance process allowed for flexibility. Mr. Hopkins noted 
that the request was a single instance, while other requirements, such as paving, applied more 
broadly throughout the city. Mr. Robb shared that he believed he had made the case for why a 
variance should be granted. 

 

Chair Martin noted that the property was on a dead-end street with low traffic and asked whether 
similar variances had been granted. Mrs. Knipe stated that they had not. Mr. Thompson observed 
that shipping containers are becoming more common, citing examples in La Plata. Mr. Hopkins 
noted that such use may be more appropriate in commercial areas and could benefit Kirksville. 

 

With no further input, the motion failed with the following vote: Aye: McLane-Iles, Robb, 
Thompson. Nay: Bansal, Hopkins, Sexton, Heckert. Abstain: Martin. Absent: Chrisman. 

 

CITIZEN / STAFF / COMMISSION INPUT 

Chair Martin reported that he had recently signed the required annual summary, as the 
commission was a state-mandated committee. He stated that the Commission reviewed and 
recommended to City Council for approval: two Special Use Permits, 13 variance requests, three 
rezoning requests, and two right-of-way vacations. 

 

He added that the Commission received presentations from the Airport and Transportation 
Commission, including updates on Downtown Intersection Movement. The Commission also 
recommended approval of the Kirksville Active Mobility Plan (KAMP), added handicap-accessible 
spaces within the right-of-way, and discussed modernization of the floodplain. He concluded by 
noting that the Commission adhered to the 2040 Comprehensive Plan throughout 2025. 

 

ADJOURNMENT 



With no further business, Chair Martin asked for a motion to adjourn.  Mr. Hopkins made a motion 
to adjourn.  Mr. Heckert seconded the motion.  Chair Martin declared the meeting adjourned at 
6:47 p.m. 

 

Teresa Dorris 

Recording Secretary 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Staff Report - Rezone Request 

This is a request to rezone the property at the northwestern corner of East Illinois 
Street and Highway 63 from RP-5, Planned Mobile Home Park District to C-3, 
Extensive Business District, which would allow the applicant to build a Casey’s (a 
convenience store with fuel sales) at this location.   

Zoning regulations “shall be made in accordance with a comprehensive plan” per 
RSMo Section 89.040. The Future Land Use Map within the City’s THINK 
Kirksville 2040 Comprehensive Plan indicates that this property should be “Mixed 
Use”. There is no “Mixed Use” zoning district in the Municipal Code, and the only way 
to accomplish “Mixed Use” is to rezone a property to a commercial district. This 
request is, therefore, in accordance with the Future Land Use Map within the 
City’s Think Kirksville 2040 Comprehensive Plan. 

Please see the GIS map with the current zoning, and the Rezoning Application, below.

Community Impact:  Rezoning the vacant RP-5 property to C-3 can stimulate 
local economic growth. This development will create employment opportunities for 
residents, and additional convenience for travelers, further enhancing the well-
being of the community. 



Kirksville, MO

160.0

THIS MAP IS NOT TO BE USED FOR NAVIGATION

Feet160.00

Notes

Legend

79.99

1 in. = 80ft.

This Cadastral Map is for informational purposes only.  It does not purport to
represent a property boundary survey of the parcels shown and shall not be

used for conveyances or the establishment of property boundaries.

Zoning

Unknown

C-1

C-3

CBD

CBDP

CP-1

CP-3

H-C-1

H-C-3

H-CBD

H-CP-1

H-M-1

H-M-2

H-R-1

H-R-2

H-R-2-S

H-R-3

H-R-4-S

HDCZ

LDCZ

M-1

M-2

MDCZ

MP-1

OP-1

PUD

R-1

R-2

R-2-S

R-3









Staff Report – Variance Request at 2806 Weatherbrooke Dr. 

A Variance Request at 2806 Weatherbrooke Dr. has been submitted by Tariq Bhutta, 
owner of the property, in order to build a cover over his deck at this location, which 
requires varying from Sec. 44-210. - District R-1, Single-Family Residential District (4), 
and Sec. 44-190. - Yard requirements generally (4)(a). 

 Sec. 44-210. (4): Rear yards. The depth of the rear yard shall be at least 30 percent of 
the depth of the lot, but such depth need not be more than 30 feet.”     

And 

Sec. 44-190. (4)(a): . . . provided further that canopies of open porches or decks having 
a roof area not exceeding 60 square feet may project a maximum of 15 feet into a required 
front or rear yard. . . .” 

The proposed deck cover would extend approximately 8 ft. into the required rear yard 
setback of 30 ft., which does not comply with Sec. 44-210. (4). The total square footage 
of the proposed deck cover is 220 sq. ft, which exceeds the 60 sq. ft. allowed by Sec. 44-
190. (4)(a).

Varying from these sections of the code would allow the use owner to build a cover over 
his existing deck. His family would like a covered place for the family to sit and be shielded 
from the weather. The applicant has also noted that there will be 50 feet between the 
deck and the rear neighbor’s house.  

Staff recommends approval of the variance. 

Please see the Variance Request Application, accompanying letter, and corresponding 
map. 

Community Impact: None 

https://library.municode.com/mo/kirksville/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=COOR_CH44ZO_ARTVZODIST_DIV3ZODISEDEST_S44-210DISIMIREDI
https://library.municode.com/mo/kirksville/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=COOR_CH44ZO_ARTVZODIST_DIV2YAGESPBUHE_S44-190YAREGE








Staff Report - Variance Request at 901 W. Shepherd Ave. 

The prospective owners of property at 901 W. Shepherd Ave. requested the extension 
of a variance from Sec. 44-132. – Detached buildings generally. to keep an existing 
shed at this location without the presence of a primary structure. This variance was 
originally approved and put into effect on June 2, 2025, for one year. The current 
owners have entered into a contract to sell the property to Andy and Tina Jackson 
(a copy of this contract has been provided to City staff). The Jacksons are 
requesting an eighteenth-month extension to the existing variance due to their 
contractor’s schedule. 

The Jacksons are planning to construct a single-family home on this property. They 
have a contractor with a tentative start date of June 2027. Given that the accessory 
building is not allowed without a primary structure, Staff recommend the approval. 
Approving a variance for the existing shed to remain, on the back side of the lot, would 
also allow the new owners to maintain the value of the current state of the property as 
they move forward with construction of a single-family home.  

When considering variances, general considerations include whether a strict 
application of the Municipal Code will cause unnecessary hardship. Adding to their 
already costly construction costs, by demolishing and then reconstructing a new shed 
after a new home is built, would present an unnecessary hardship. 

Staff recommends that this request be approved. 

Please see the Variance Request Application, letter of support, contractor's letter, 
and corresponding map below. 

Community Impact: No anticipated externalities. No anticipated infrastructure impacts 



5/8/2026

0.926












	20260513 Agenda
	Citizen Participation
	(Time Limit of Five Minutes) Citizen participation is for suggestions and comments on items affecting the Planning & Zoning Commission and the City, but are not on the agenda.  Action by the Commission other than acknowledgment is not expected at the...
	Adjournment
	Notice of Nondiscrimination:
	Notice of Disability Accommodations:
	Any person with a disability desiring reasonable accommodation to attend this meeting may contact the City Clerk at 660.627.1225 to make such arrangements.

	Binder1
	2806 Weatherbrooke Dr. Letter
	2806 Weatherbrooke Dr. Variance Application
	Casey's E Illinois Rezone Application
	901 W Shepherd Ave Letters & Plans
	901 W. Shepherd Ave. GIS Map




